
         

 

SEBASTIAN RIVER 
IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT 

 

INDIAN RIVER COUNTY 
 

REGULAR BOARD MEETING 
FEBRUARY 19, 2025 

10:00 A.M. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Special District Services, Inc. 
The Oaks Center 

2501A Burns Road 
Palm Beach Gardens, FL 33410 

www.sridfl.org 
561.630.4922 Telephone 
877.SDS.4922 Toll Free 
561.630.4923 Facsimile 



 

 
AGENDA 

SEBASTIAN RIVER IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT 
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS  

Indian River County Administration Complex 
Bldg. A, Room A1-102 

1800 27th Street 
Vero Beach, Florida 32960 

REGULAR BOARD MEETING 
February 19, 2025 

10:00 a.m. 
 
 

A. Call to Order 

B. Proof of Publication……………………………………………………………………………….…….Page 1 

C. Establish Quorum 

D. Additions or Deletions to Agenda  

E. Approval of Minutes  

1. December 11, 2024 Special Board Meeting………………………………………………………..Page 2  

F. Old Business 

G. New Business 

1. Update on Open Projects:  River Oaks, Hawks Grove, Bluewater Bay 

2. Update on FDOT MOA 

3. Discussion Regarding FDOT as it Relates to  CR 510 (W 82nd Ave./E 58th Ave.) 
Roadway Improvement Project……………………………………………………………………Page 5 
 

4. Consider Resolution No. 2025-01 – Adopting a Fiscal Year 2025/2026 Proposed Budget………Page 18 

H. Administrative Matters 

1. Sand Mine Update 

2. Financial Update…………………………………………………………………………………...Page 22 

3. Engineer Update 

4. Manager Update 

I. Board Members Comments 

J. Comments from the Public for Items Not on the Agenda 

K. Adjourn 



Page 1



 
 

SEBASTIAN RIVER IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT 
SPECIAL BOARD MEETING MINUTES 

DECEMBER 11, 2024 
 
 

A. CALL TO ORDER  

The December 11, 2024, Special Board Meeting of the Sebastian River Improvement District (the 
“District”) was called to order at 10:00 a.m. in the Indian River County Administration Complex, 
Building B, Room B-1-303, 1801 27th Street, Vero Beach, Florida 32960. 
 
B. PROOF OF PUBLICATION  

Proof of publication was presented showing that notice of the Regular Board Meeting had been 
published in Indian River Press Journal on December 2, 2024, as legally required. 
 
C. ESTABLISH QUORUM 

A quorum was established with the following Supervisors present: 
 
Board of Supervisors  

Chairman Jeff Bass Present 

Supervisor Tom Hammond Absent 

Supervisor Chad Kelly Present 

 
Staff members in attendance were: 

District Counsel Ruth Holmes Torcivia, Donlon, Goddeau &  
Rubin, P.A. 

District Engineer George Simons & Frank 

Watanabe 

Carter Associates, Inc. 

District Manager Frank Sakuma &Stephanie 

Brown, Todd Wodraska 

Special District Services, Inc. 

 
D. ADDITIONS OR DELETIONS TO AGENDA 

Staff asked for permission to add the following items to the agenda: 
 

- Updates from the District Engineer on projects within the District.  
 

E. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

1. October 16, 2024, Regular Board Meeting Minutes 
 
A motion was made by Mr. Bass, seconded by Mr. Kelly approving the minutes of the October  
16, 2024, Regular Board Meeting, as  presented. The motion approving the minutes passed 
unanimously. 
 
F. OLD BUSINESS 

Page 2



 
 
There were no items.  
 
G. NEW BUSINESS 

1. Presentation of FDOT MOA 
 

Mr. Simons and Ms. Holmes discussed the review of the MOA and stated they were still in the 
process of getting clarification from FDOT on obligations listed and other legal provisions. After 
Board discussion, Mr. Bass made a motion, seconded by Mr. Kelly, approving the FDOT MOA 
subject to the finalization of the legal provisions. The motion passed unanimously. 
 

2. Update and Discussion Related to the River Oaks Project 
 

Mr. Simons updated the Board as to the ongoing review of various elements of the project.  
 

#.  Discussion of the Unit of Development Program 
 

Mr. Wodraska explained the powers of an Improvement District and discussed the purpose and 
benefits of creating Units of Development under the SRID. He recommended staff construct a 
SRID program for Units of Development to bring back before the Board for consideration. After 
Board discussion, there was consensus of the Board to direct staff to create a program for Units of 
Development, and to bring that information to a future Board meeting. 
 

3. Water Quality Results   
 
Mr. Sakuma stated that the water quality report was included in the Board package. Mr. Simons 
provided the Board with a synopsis of the report and advised that there were no issues found.  
 

4. Update on Hawks Grove Project 
 

Mr. Simons provided a review of the Hawks Grove Project. Mr. Bass suggested adding a 40ft 
maintenance easement to the agreement. After further discussion, consensus of the Board to add a 
maintenance easement into the agreement and bring it back to the Board for approval. 
 
 
H. ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 

 
1. Sand Mine Update 

Mr. Simons advised the Blue Goose Mine renewal was complete, and both Wild Turkey and Davis 
Mines were still pending.  
 

2. Finance Report 

Mr. Sakuma noted the finance report was included in the Board package, and he was available at 
any time to address questions from the Board.  
 

3. Engineer Update 

Mr. Simons provided updates to the Board for the following projects: 
 

- Right of Way maintenance by Cates; 

Page 3



 
 

- Bluewater Bay, current request for additional information; 
- Florida Gas Line permit, pending ROW Lease Agreement execution.  

 
4. Manager Update 

Mr. Sakuma reminded the Board to complete the required ethics training no later than December 
31, 2024. The Board asked staff to send the training links. 
 
I. BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS 
 
The Board had no further comments.  
 
J. COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC FOR ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA  

 

There were no comments from the public.  
 
K. ADJOURNMENT 

 
There being no further business to come before the Board, the Special Board Meeting of the 
District was adjourned at 10:42 a.m. There were no objections. 
 
 
 
    
Secretary/Assistant Secretary  Chair/Vice-Chairman 

Page 4



Page 5



Page 6



Page 7



Page 8



Page 9



Page 10



Page 11



Page 12



Page 13



Page 14



Page 15



Page 16



Page 17



RESOLUTION NO. 2025-01 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE 
SEBASTIAN RIVER IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT APPROVING A 
PROPOSED BUDGET FOR FISCAL YEAR 2025/2065; AND PROVIDING 
AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 

 
 WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors (“Board”) of the Sebastian River Improvement 
District (“District”) is required by Chapter 298, Florida Statutes, to approve a Proposed Budget 
for each fiscal year; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the Proposed Budget including the Assessments for Fiscal Year 2025/2026 
has been prepared and considered by the Board. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
OF THE SEBASTIAN RIVER IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT THAT: 
 

Section 1. The Proposed Budget including the Assessments for Fiscal Year 
2025/2026 attached hereto as Exhibit “A” is approved and adopted. 
 

Section 2.       A Public Hearing is hereby scheduled for June 18, 2025 at 10:00 a.m. at 
Indian River County Administration Complex, Building A, Room A1-102, 1801 27th Street, 
Vero Beach, Florida 32960, for the purpose of receiving public comments on the Proposed Fiscal 
Year 2025/2026 Budget. 
 
 

PASSED, ADOPTED and EFFECTIVE this 19th day of February, 2025. 
 

 
ATTEST: SEBASTIAN RIVER  
 IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT 
 
 
 
 
 
By:  By:  
 Secretary/Assistant Secretary Chairman/Vice Chairman 

Page 18



   Sebastian River
  Improvement District

    Proposed Budget For
    Fiscal Year 2025/2026

     October 1, 2025 - September 30, 2026

Page 19



Page 20



Page 21



 Sebastian River
Improvement District

   Financial Report For
January 2025

Page 22



Page 23



Page 24


	Sebastian River Improvement District - February 19, 2025 Regular Board Meeting Book
	Agenda
	Proof of Publication
	December 11, 2024 Special Board Meeting Minutes
	Discussion Regarding FDOT as it Relates to CR 510 (W 82nd Ave. / E 58th Ave.) Roadway Improvement Project
	Consider Resolution No. 2025-01 – Adopting a Fiscal Year 2025/2026 Proposed Budget




